
BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
OF THE STATE OF MISSOURI

Director of the Manufactured Housing and
Modular Units Program of the Missouri
Public Service Commission,

Complainant,

V.

Amega Sales, Inc .
d/b/a Quality Preowned Homes, Columbia
Discount Homes, Mark Twain Mobile
Home Sales, and Chateau Homes

Case No . MC-2008-

COMPLAINT

COMES NOW the Director of the Manufactured Homes and Modular Units

Program of the Missouri Public Service Commission (Director), by and through the

Missouri Public Service Commission's ("Commission") Office of General Counsel,

pursuant to Sections 700.015, 700 .045 and 700.100 RSMo 2000 and for his Complaint

against Amega Sales, Inc . states as follows :

Allegations Common to All Counts

1 .

	

The Commission has jurisdiction over manufactured homes and

manufactured home dealers pursuant to Chapter 700 RSMo 2000 1 ' 1 .

2 .

	

Respondent, Amega Sales, Inc ., (Amega) is a manufactured home dealer

as defined in Section 700 .010(4), doing business under the following names :

~'l All references to the Revised Statutes of Missouri will be to RSMo 2000 as currently supplemented
unless otherwise noted.



a) Quality Preowned Homes, 5670 N. Highway 763, Columbia, MO 65202,

b) Columbia Discount Homes, 5311 N. Highway 763, Columbia, MO

65202,

c)

	

Mark Twain Mobile Home Sales, Route 1, Box 32-A, 602 N . Pleasant,

Farber, MO 63345,

d)

	

Chateau Homes, 901 Perry Ave ., Ashland, MO 65010, and

e)

	

Amega Sales, Inc., P.O. Box 229, Ashland, MO 65010 .

3 . The Commission issued five Certificates of Dealer Registration to Amega

Sales, Inc ., under the names identified in paragraph 2 on January 10, 2007 . Copies of the

Certificates are attached hereto as Exhibit A . Notice of this Complaint should be issued

to all five of Amega Sales, Inc .'s registrants .

4 . Section 700.015.1 prohibits any person from selling or offering for sale a

manufactured home unless the home complies with the Code and bears the proper seal .

The Code is defmed by section 700 .010(2) as "the standards relating to manufactured

homes . . . as adopted by the commission." In rule 4 CSR 240-120 .100 the Commission

adopted the federal standards in 24 CFR Part 3280, known as the HUD Code, as the Code

applicable to manufactured homes in Missouri .

5 . Section 407 .020.1 provides that the act or employment by any person of

fraud, deception, false pretense, misrepresentation, unfair practice or the concealment,

suppression or omission of any material fact in connection with the sale or advertisement

of any merchandise in trade or commerce is an unlawful act .
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6 . Section 700.100.3(4) provides that the Commission may suspend or

revoke the registration of any dealer that engages in conduct constituting a violation of

section 407.020 .

7 . Section 700.115 provides that a violation of section 700 .015 shall

constitute a violation of section 407 .020, therefore, under section 700 .100 the

Commission may revoke the registration of a dealer for a violation of section 700 .015 .

Count I - The Nelson Home
Violation of Section 700 .015

Civil Penalties

8.

	

The Director realleges and incorporates herein paragraphs 1 through 7

above .

9 . On December 26, 2006, Amega Sales, Inc . d/b/a Quality Preowned Homes

entered into a contract with Dale and Jodi Nelson to sell a manufactured home identified

as: 2005 Southern EL-319, bearing serial number DESAL1101AB ("the Nelson Home") .

HUD label NTA 1357107-08 was affixed to the home indicating it complied with the

HUD Code. The Nelson Home was a new manufactured home, as defined in § 700 .010

(8) . A copy of the said sale contract is attached hereto as "Exhibit B ."

10 .

	

Because of damage to the home in transit to or at Amega's lot, the home

did not comply with the Code.

11 .

	

On or before April 20, 2007, Amega delivered the Nelson Home to Mr .

and Mrs. Nelson and set it up on their property, at 2331 CR2755, Moberly, Missouri .

12 . On April 23, 2007, upon the request of Mr. and Mrs . Nelson, Tim Haden,

an inspector with the Public Service Commission, inspected the Nelson Home . Mr.

Haden ascertained that the home had been damaged in that the front half of the home had
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been "topped" along the full length of the home, and, in addition, that the setup of the

home was improper or incomplete in many respects . Mr. Haden noted that repair work

had begun, but that the factory did not authorize such work . Mr. Haden prepared a report

on his inspection of the home, a copy of which is attached as "Exhibit C."

13 .

	

Amega offered for sale andd sold a new manufactured home that did not

comply with the Code, in violation of the provisions of section 700 .015 .

14 .

	

Amega's violation of section 700 .015 is a violation of section 407 .020

according to section 700.115 .

15 .

	

Section 700 .115 .2, RSMO states, in relevant part, that anyone who violates

the provisions of sections 700.010 to 700.115 shall :

" . . .be liable to the state of Missouri for a civil penalty in an
amount, which shall not exceed one thousand dollars for each such
violation. Each violation of this chapter shall constitute a separate
violation with respect to each manufactured home or with respect
to each failure or refusal to allow or perform an act required by this
chapter."

Wherefore, the Director prays that the Commission find that Amega Sales, Inc .,

violated the provisions of section 700.015, find that said violation is a violation of section

407.020, find that Amega is liable to the State of Missouri for a civil penalty, authorize

the General Counsel's Office to seek penalties, and order such other relief as is just .

Count II - The Nelson Home
Violation of Section 407 .020.1
Revocation of Registrations

above .

16 .

	

The Director realleges and incorporates herein paragraphs 1 through 15

17 .

	

In connection with the sale or advertisement of merchandise in trade or

commerce, Amega Sales, Inc ., through Quality Preowned Homes misrepresented to Mr .
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and Mrs. Nelson the condition of the home, failed to disclose to Mr. and Mrs. Nelson that

the home had been damaged and did not comply with the Code, and concealed material

facts about the condition of the home from Mr. and Mrs. Nelson in violation of the

provisions of Section 407 .020 .1 .

18 .

	

Engaging in conduct that is a violation of section 407.020.1 is grounds for

revocation of the registrations of Amega under section 700 .100.1 .

19 . The violation of section 700 .015 set forth in Count I is a violation of

section 407.020 under section 700 .115.1, therefore section 700 .100 allows for revocation

of Amega's registrations

Wherefore, the Director prays that the Commission find that Amega Sales, Inc .,

engaged in conduct which constitutes a violation the provisions of section 407 .020.1, find

that Amega violated the provisions of section 700 .015, and revoke all of the registrations

of Amega Sales, Inc., under section 700 .100, and for other relief as is just and

appropriate .

Count III - The Whitford Home
Violation of Section 700 .015

Civil Penalties

20 .

	

The Director realleges and incorporates herein paragraphs I through 7

above.

21 . On or about January 4, 2007, CMH Manufacturing, a manufacturer

located in Savannah, Tennessee, manufactured a home identified as follows : 2007

Clayton Lakeshore, bearing serial number CS2008473TNAB ("the Whitford Home") . It

affixed HUD labels numbered TEN 688084 and TEN 688085, signifying that the home

complied with the Code when it left CMH Manufacturing's factory .
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22 . Sometime prior to May 26, 2007, Amega doing business as Quality

Preowned Homes acquired ownership of the said home and offered it for sale on its lot in

Columbia, Missouri. On May 26, 2007, Amega d/b/a Quality Preowned Homes entered

into a contract with David Whitford to sell the said home to him . The Whitford Home

was a new manufactured home, as defined in § 700 .010 (8). A copy of the said sale

contract is attached hereto as "Exhibit D."

23 .

	

Because of damage to the home in transit to or at Amega's lot, the home

did not comply with the Code.

24 . The Whitford Home remained on Quality's lot until June 13, 2007, when

Tim Haden, an inspector with the PSC, inspected the home . Mr. Haden ascertained that

the home had been damaged in the following respects : There was visible transit damage

to the `B half' of the home ; there were visible repairs to the trusses from the hitch end to

the rear end, and there was no ridge beam on the "A half' or the `B half' of the home .

Mr. Haden prepared a report on his inspection of the home, a copy of which is attached as

"Exhibit E." Mr. Haden "red-tagged" the home on June 13, 2007, to indicate that it could

not be sold or offered for sale, and he removed the HUD labels on June 20, 2007, to

signify that the Whitford Home no longer complied with the Code .

25 . Amega offered for sale, and entered into a contract to sell, a new

manufactured home that did not comply with the Code, in violation of the provisions of

section 700.015 .

26 .

	

Amega's violation of section 700 .015 is a violation of section 407 .020

according to section 700.115 .
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27 .

	

Section 700.115 .2, RSMo states, in relevant part, that anyone who violates

the provisions of sections 700 .010 to 700.115 shall :

" . . .be liable to the state of Missouri for a civil penalty in an
amount, which shall not exceed one thousand dollars for each such
violation. Each violation of this chapter shall constitute a separate
violation with respect to each manufactured home or with respect
to each failure or refusal to allow or perform an act required by this
chapter."

Wherefore, the Director prays that the Commission find that Amega Sales, Inc .,

violated the provisions of section 700 .015, find that said violation is a violation of section

407.020, find that Amega is liable to the State of Missouri for a civil penalty, authorize

the General Counsel's Office to seek penalties, and order such other relief as is just .

Count IV - The Whitford Home
Violation of Section 407 .020.1
Revocation of Registrations

28.

	

The Director realleges and incorporates herein paragraphs 1 through 7 and

20 through 27 above .

29 . In connection with the sale or advertisement of merchandise in trade or

commerce, Amega misrepresented to Mr . Whitford the condition of the home, failed to

disclose to Mr. Whitford that the home had been damaged and did not comply with the

Code, and concealed material facts about the condition of the home from Mr . Whitford,

in violation of the provisions of section 407 .020.1 .

30 .

	

Engaging in conduct that is a violation of section 407 .020.1 is grounds for

revocation of the registrations of Amega under section 700 .100.1 .

31 . The violation of section 700.015 set forth is Count III is a violation of

section 407 .020 under section 700 .115 .1, therefore section 700 .100 allows for revocation

of Amega's registrations .

7



Wherefore, the Director prays that the Commission find that Amega Sales, Inc .

engaged in conduct which constitutes a violation the provisions of section 407 .020.1, find

that Amega violated the provisions of section 700 .015, and revoke all of the registrations

of Amega Sales, Inc ., under section 700 .100, and for other relief as is just and

appropriate .

Count V - The Gilmore Home
Violation of Section 700 .015

Civil Penalties

32 .

	

The Director realleges and incorporates herein paragraphs 1 through 7

above .

33 . On or about January 18, 2006, CMH Manufacturing, a manufacturer

located in Hodgenville, Kentucky, manufactured a home identified as follows : 2006

Clayton Brookdale, bearing serial number CHO 002302KYAB ("the Gilmore Home") .

It affixed HUD labels numbered HWC 367366 and HWC 367367 to the Gilmore

Home, signifying that the home complied with the Code when it left CMH

Manufacturing's factory.

34 . Some time prior to April 4, 2007, Amega doing business as Columbia

Discount Homes acquired ownership of the Gilmore Home and offered it for sale on its

lot. On April 4, 2007, Amega d/b/a Columbia Discount entered into a contract with Brian

and Francis Gilmore to sell the said home to them . The Gilmore Home was a new

manufactured home, as defined in Section 700.010 (8) . A copy of the said sale contract

is attached as "Exhibit F ."

35 .

	

Because of damage to the home in transit to or at Amega's lot, the home

did not comply with the Code .
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36 . The said home remained on Columbia Discount's lot until June 14, 2007,

when Tim Haden, an inspector with the PSC, inspected the home. Mr. Haden ascertained

that the home had been damaged in the following respects : there was water damage to the

ceilings, walls and floors along the marriage line of "B" half of the home; drywall and

insulation had been removed, leaving mold visible in several parts of the home ; there was

damage in the hitch end bedroom, dining room and family room, and the vinyl of the

back door side was damaged . Mr. Haden prepared a report on his inspection of the home,

a copy of which is attached as "Exhibit G." Mr. Haden "red-tagged" the home on June

14, 2007, to indicate that it could not be sold or offered for sale, and he removed the

HUD labels on June 20, 2007, to signify that the home no longer complied with the Code .

37 . Amega through Columbia Discount Homes offered for sale, and entered

into a contract to sell, a new manufactured home that did not comply with the Code, in

violation of the provisions of section 700 .015 .

38 .

	

Amega's violation of section 700 .015 is a violation of section 407 .020

according to section 700.115 .

39 .

	

Section 700 .115.2, RSMo states, in relevant part, that anyone who violates

the provisions of sections 700 .010 to 700.015 shall :

" . . .be liable to the state of Missouri for a civil penalty in an
amount, which shall not exceed one thousand dollars for each such
violation. Each violation of this chapter shall constitute a separate
violation with respect to each manufactured home or with respect
to each failure or refusal to allow or perform an act required by this
chapter."

Wherefore, the Director prays that the Commission find that Amega Sales, Inc .,

violated the provisions of section 700 .015, find that said violation is a violation of section
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407 .020, find that Amega is liable to the State of Missouri for a civil penalty, authorize

the General Counsel's Office to seek penalties, and order such other relief as is just .

Count VI-The Gilmore Home
Violation of Section 407 .020.1
Revocation of Registrations

40.

	

The Director realleges and incorporates herein paragraphs 1 through 7 and

32 through 39 above .

41 . In connection with the sale or advertisement of merchandise in trade or

, commerce, Amega d/b/a Columbia Discount misrepresented to Mr. and Mrs . Gilmore the

condition of the home, failed to disclose that the home had been damaged and did not

comply with the Code, and concealed material facts about the condition of the home from

Mr. and Mrs. Gilmore, in violation of the provisions of section 407 .020.1 .

42 . In connection with the sale and in violation of section 407 .020 .1, Amega

attempted to deliver the Gilmore home when it did not comply with the Code and had no

HUD label on July 3, 2007

43 .

	

Engaging in conduct that is a violation of section 407 .020.1 is grounds for

revocation of the registrations of Amega under section 700 .100.1 .

44 . The violation of section 700.015 set forth is Count V is a violation of

section 407.020 under section 700 .115.1, therefore section 700 .100 allows for revocation

of Amega's registrations .

Wherefore, the Director prays that the Commission find that Amega Sales, Inc .,

engaged in conduct which constitutes a violation the provisions of section 407 .020.1, find

that Amega violated the provisions of section 700 .015, and revoke all of the registrations
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of Amega Sales, Inc ., under section 700 .100, and for other relief as is just and

appropriate .

Count VII - Violation of Commission Approved Stipulation and Agreement
$10,000 Civil Penalty

45 .

	

The Director realleges and incorporates herein paragraphs 1 through 7 and

32 through 44 above .

46 . On September 29, 2006, Amega and Greg DeLine entered into a

Stipulation and Agreement, approved by the Commission in Case No . MC-2004-0079,

providing in Paragraph 6 that Amega and its affiliates, or an entity owned or controlled

by DeLine, shall pay a civil penalty of $10,000 to the public school fund in the event

Amega sells any manufactured home that is "red-tagged" or does not have a HUD label

at the time of sale .

47 .

	

Amega Sales, Inc, does business as Columbia Discount Homes, and

Amega and Columbia Discount Homes are owned or controlled by DeLine .

48 .

	

On April 4, 2007, Amega d/b/a Columbia Discount entered into a contract

with Brian and Francis Gilmore to sell a manufactured home to the Gilmores .

49 . As set forth in Count V above Mr. Haden on behalf of the Director "red-

tagged" the home on June 14, 2007, to indicate that it could not be sold or offered for sale

and Mr. Haden removed the HUD labels on June 20, 2007, to signify that the home no

longer complied with the Code . See "Exhibit G" .

50 .

	

On July 3, 2007, Amega attempted to deliver the Gilmore home to the

Gilmores in spite of the "red-tag" and the lack of a HUD labael .

51 .

	

The attempt to deliver the Gilmore home constitutes a continuing effort to

sell a manufactured home that is red-tagged and without a HUD label .

11



52 . The Stipulation and Agreement specifically provides that the

"Commission shall have the power to determine whether any violations of . . . Paragraph

6 have occurred."

Wherefore, the Director respectfully requests that the Commission find that

Amega violated Paragraph 6 of the Stipulation and Agreement and is thereby liable for a

penalty of $10,000 ; authorize the General Counsel's Office to seek penalties, and order

such other relief as is just .

Respectfully submitted,

12

/s/StevenC.Reed	
Steven C Reed
Missouri Bar No.40616

Attorney for the Director of the
Manufactured Housing and Modular
Units Program of the Missouri
Public Service Commission
P . O. Box 360
Jefferson City, MO 65102
(573) 751-3105
(573) 751-9285 (Fax)



Missouri Public Service Commission

MANUFACTURED HOUSING AND MODULAR UNITS PROGRAM

Registration Number: 1011203

TO WHOM IT MAY CONCERN." The dealer shown b&ow has complied *ith the requirements
of Sections 700.06 and 700 .45 15.RSMo, and therefore is registered in :the of Missouri as a
Dealer of Manufactured Homes Tins certificate is, valid until January 15, , 2008 .

, QUA-,LITY PREOWNED HOMES ,
5679:NIHGHWikY

'
763

COLUMBIA, MO 65202

Issued.To

AMEGASALESX,4C
P.O. BOX 229
ASHLAND M0,65010 . ., .

Ron Pleus, Manager, Manufactured Housing and 1bdular-Unit Program

THIS CERTIFICATION MUST BE PROMINENTLY DISPLAYED

Issue date: 1/ 1 0/2007

Exhibit A



Missouri Public Service Commission

MANUFACTURED HOUSING AND MODULAR UNITS PROGRAM

TO WHOM-IT MAY CONCERN: The,deaer shown below has complied:with e requirements
of Sections"700 :090- and 700.455 RSMo,, and therefore is registered in The State of.-Missouri as a
Dealer ofManufactured:Homes: :Tlus certificate is valid- until January,15,, 2008 .'

Issued To

AM EGA` SALES, INC
P.O BOX 229: ;
ASHLAND MO 65010 -

COLUMBIA DISCOUNT HOMES ;
5311 .N 1UGHWAY 763
COLUMBIA, MO . 65202'~

Ron Pleus, Manager, Manufactured Housing and ModulesUnit"Program

THIS CERTIFICATION MUST BE PROMINENTLY DISPLAYED

Registration Number : 1011202

Certificate .6 eater.

Issue date: 1/ 1 0/2007



Missouri Public Service Commission

MANUFACTURED HOUSING AND MODULAR UNITS PROGRA

2007

TO WHOM IT Y''CONCERN: The dealer shown belowhas complied with the requirements
of Sections 7Q0 .090 and',700.455 RSMo, andtherEfore is registered inrtke State ofMissouri as a
Dealer of Manu

	

Homes. This certificate is valid until Janu ' 15 2factured ., .

Ron Pleus, Manager, Manufactured Housing and Modular Unit Program

THIS CERTIFICATION MUST BE PROMINENTLY DISPLAYED

Registration Number : 1011204 Issue date: 1/10/2007



Missouri Public Service Commission

MANUFACTURED HOUSING AND MODULAR UNITS PROGRAM

2007

TO WHOM IT MAY CONCERN: Thee dealer shown beloww has complied with therequirements
of Sections 700 .090 and'700 .455>RSMo, and therefore is registered in the State of Missouri as a
Dealer of Modular Units . This,certificate'isvalid until :7auuary, :15; 2008 . .

lssued.To .

AMEGA=,SLESINC
Pb-8-0X'2'219. ;: ,

ASHLAND, MO-::65Q10, .

DBAas

CHATEAU HOMES
90f PERRY AVE
ASHLAND, MO :6501.0

Ron Pleus, Manager, Manufactured Housing .and Modular-Unit Program

THIS CERTIFICATION MUST BE PROMINENTLY DISPLAYED

Registration Number: 1011206 . Issue date: 1/10/2007



Missouri Public Service Commission

MANUFACTURED HOUSING AND MODULAR UNITS PROGRAM

TO WHOM IT MAY:CONCERN: The4ealer shown below has complied with the requirements
of Sections 700.66'and 700.455;RSMo, and therefore is registered in the-State of-Missouri as a
Dealer of Manufactured Homes:=;This certificate is valid uritil7anuary 15, 2008 . .

Ron Pleus, Manager, Manufactured Housing and Modular Unit Program

THIS CERTIFICATION MUST BE PROMINENTLY DISPLAYED

Registration Number: 1011201 Issue date: 1/10/2007
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